City of Seattle Request for Proposal SPU-2696
Addendum 

Updated on 05/21/2010

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal SPU-2696 titled Flow Monitoring Goods and Services released on 05/04/2010. REVISION The due date and time for responses is revised to 4:00PM 06/04/2010 (Pacific).  The deadline for questions has been revised to 5/27/2010 (Pacific). This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	Does SPU want a separate proposal for each specification?


	Yes.
	

	2. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	Scoring Criteria, the RFP indicates a 10 page limit for Technical Approach.  Is that 10 pages for each of the 3 specifications or a total 10 page limit to cover all 3 specifications?
	10 pages for each of the 3 specifications, not 10 pages total for all the specifications.
	

	3. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	Scoring Criteria, the technical approach lists 6 subject areas to cover.  Is the technical approach considered separate from the RFQ Questions for each specification?  The six subject areas listed in the Scoring Criteria are covered in the RFQ Questions.
	No, the questions should cover the same ground as is outlined in the scoring criteria, so no separate response is required for the scoring criteria.
	

	4. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	Scoring Criteria; Section 2. Specification / Technical Approach (maximum of 40 points) – No longer than 10 pages, not including the preliminary person-day estimate for each task.  What is the preliminary person-day estimate for each task?  Is a schedule required?
	No schedule is required.  Person-day estimate should be covered by response to the bid offer sheet.
	

	5. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	For Specifications 1, 2 and 3 minimum Qualifications the RFP states “clearly list each minimum Qualification and exactly how you achieve each minimum qualification.”  This is limited to a single page for each specification.  With this page limit restriction in mind, the listed minimum qualifications test for each Specification nearly takes up a full page.  So repeating this text in our response does not provide a lot of room for our text response while keeping to the one single page limit.  Instead of listing (repeating) the qualifications, can our response just list the number by each qualification in the list and then provide our response?  Does the single page limit mean 1 sheet of paper 2 sides
	No repetition of the minimum qualifications items is necessary in the response, and the single page limit is interpreted as meaning 1 sheet of paper, 2 sides.
	

	6. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	Ref Page 2 (and others) of Proposal Scoring Criteria : Pricing Specification 1, Items 25-33; Specification 2, Items 13-16; Specification 3, Items 8,9,12;  These items are given units of per site, but the time period is not specified.  Should it be assumed that these are the units per year or per month?
	Per month
	

	7. 
	05/07/2010
	5/14/2010
	Ref Page 2 (and others) of Proposal Scoring Criteria: Pricing. Specification 1, Items 53,57, 58; Specification 2, Items 41-43; Specification 3, Items 21,25,26;  The estimated quantities and the units do not match.  For instance a single event (Spec 1, Item 53, traffic control) may require 2 people 4 hours to complete, for a total of 8 manhours.  If a crew member rate is $50 per hour, what should be listed in the unit price cost,  $400 per event? $100 per hour traffic control? Or $50 which is the actual hourly manpower rate?
	Per person/per hour.
	

	8. 
	05/10/2010
	5/14/10
	Will there be a description of the sites or potential sites?
	A general map of CSO and rain gage sites, some example site configurations, and some additional information on the Ballard GSI sites is provided in the attached document.   
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	9. 
	05/10/2010
	5/14/10
	Can we decline a partial award?
	Yes
	

	10. 
	05/10/2010
	5/14/10
	Are these sites owned by SPU?
	Yes
	

	11. 
	05/10/2010
	5/17/2010
	Can a vendor propose equipment only?
	Yes
	

	12. 
	05/10/2010
	5/17/2010
	Is there an option to submit approved or equal for the flow monitors assuming the criteria of intrinsically safe, modbus technology and appropriate accuracy levels are met?
	Yes
	

	13. 
	05/10/2010
	5/17/2010
	Can you further define the accuracy criteria?
	Accuracy should be equal to or better than the accuracy of the equipment that is currently being used by SPU.
SPU Functional Requirements (Herrera, 2005)

Sensor Velocity Range Accuracy

Peak Velocity Sensor

-5.0 – 5.0 fps 0.8 %

5.0 – 10.0 fps 1.2 %

10.0 – 15.0 fps 2.8 %

Pressure Depth Sensor

0.0 – 11.5 feet 0.25 %

0.0 – 34.5 feet 0.75 %

0.0 – 69.0 feet 2.3 %

Ultrasonic level sensor 

0.0 – 12.5 feet +/- 0.165 inches (any reading)
	

	14. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Regarding Specification #1 -  Item# 6: What are the current rain gauges and what are the requirements of the rain gauge.  i.e. are they connected to the flow logger or directly into the Campbell-Scientific data loggers?


	SPU rain gages are comprised of two major parts.  The gage itself is a Hydrologic Services TB03 tipping bucket rain gage (.01 inches per tip) which is connected to a FlowShark Model 5000 flow meter as the local data logger.  Each FlowShark is either connected to a dedicated dial-up phone line or operates off a GSM cellular network for accessing the meters to download rainfall data twice a day.


	

	15. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Regarding Specification #1 -  Item# 59-62: Question was asked if this was a sole-sourced bid given there is no ‘equal’ or ‘approved equal’ to which the answer was meters will be IS and capable of MODBUS communication.  Please provide greater specification as to product requirements and what process would be needed to be named as a approved equal for all these meters along with accuracy requirements/statements for these meters
	This solicitation is not a sole source bid.  Vendors are welcome to attach additional equipment or services to the bid offer sheet for any of the specifications.  For accuracy requirements/statements, please see question 13.
	

	16. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Regarding Specification #1 -  Is there going to be consideration for AC vs DC powered units and/or the operational battery cost associated with battery life of the meters.  What is the City of Seattle’s public commitment to green energy and disposal practice for spent batteries?  Is there a battery requirement for uptime of meter on single change of batteries, if needed?
	Is there going to be consideration for AC vs DC powered units and/or the operational battery cost associated with battery life of the meters.   The battery costs will be considered as part of the overall maintenance and operation costs of the meters, as specified in the bid offer sheet.  For an example of the breakdown of powered vs. battery operated sites, see items #26 through 33 in the bid offer sheet for Specification 1.
What is the City of Seattle’s public commitment to green energy and disposal practice for spent batteries? Seattle City Light is the power utility in Seattle.  Here is their green energy website:   http://www.seattle.gov/light/green/greenpower Rechargeable batteries are NOT accepted as garbage. Businesses must recycle batteries
Is there a battery requirement for uptime of meter on single change of batteries, if needed?  No.


	

	17. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Regarding Specification #1 -  Item# 64-65: SPU currently own several copies of Teledyne Isco Flowlink 5 software which can be used with multiple meter input via MODBUS communication.  What is the requirement for flow monitoring software and is this part or the specification again sole sourced and what requirement is required to be named “or equal”.  Teledyne Isco would propose and provide depending on site assessment and accuracy requirement either 2151(P), 2150ex, accQmin or ADFM Pro-20


	See Specification 1 scope section 1.1.1., Web-based data delivery system functionality, for flow monitoring software requirements.  This specification is not sole sourced.  

	

	18. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Regarding Specification #3 -  Items # 30-31: Questions was asked if this was a sole-sourced bid given there is no ‘equal’ or ‘approved equal’ to which the answer was meters will be IS and capable of MODBUS communication.  Please provide greater specification as to product requirements and what process would be needed to be named as an approved equal for all these meters along with accuracy requirements/statements for these meters.  Teledyne Isco would propose and provide depending on site assessment and accuracy requirement either 2151(P), 2150ex, accQmin or ADFM Pro-20


	This specification is not sole-sourced.  For Intrinsic Safety (IS) question, see question 21.  However, the specification 3 sites are not required to be MODBUS compatible, that requirement is only for Spec 1 CSO monitoring sites which need to be connected to the SCADA system.   With regard to the specification of the ADS Triton meter for these sites, at the time SPU considered how these sites would fit into the existing network of combined sewer and sanitary sewer sites, the ADS Triton as having the best fit for the sites requirements of high depth accuracy and redundant depth sensors, as well as being intrinsically safe.   Vendors who wish to add additional equipment to the bid offer sheet for evaluation that meets the requirements of accuracy as listed in addendum item #13 and IS rating are welcome to do so. 
	

	19. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Site information, at the very minimum pipe sizes for the permanent CSO sites and ideally level and existing flow data for equipment selection and mounting hardware selection.
	This information is not readily available, and would represent a level of effort to acquire that cannot be accommodated within the time frame of the RFP addendum.  For vendor reference, the range of pipe sizes is from 8 inches to 120 inches, and the most frequent pipe sizes are 12 in, 24 in, 36 in, and 48 in.  
	

	20. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Flow meter accuracy requirements
	See question 13.
	

	21. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	Are IS requirements needed for all meters called out for under the individual specifications.  Please reference Specification #3 for example of all Teledyne Isco IS meters.  Note, 2150 is not IS and change of specs would be required if IS requirement needs to be maintained.


	Intrinsically safe equipment is only required in Class 1, Division 1 spaces as described by the National Electric Code Article 500.  Certain monitoring locations, such as combined or sanitary sewers, are Class 1, Division 1 rated.  Others, such as stormwater sewers or creeks, are not.  SPU is planning to replace the monitors which are located in Class 1, Division 1 locations, but not the monitors in locations which do not fit the Class 1, Division 1 classification.  The meters for Specification 3 are located in combined sewers, and so would need to be replaced with IS equipment.  If the ISCO 2150 is not IS, vendors are welcome to add additional bid offer items for more appropriate for these locations.
	

	22. 
	5/14/2010
	5/17/2010
	It was mentioned that new meters will not be necessarily a requirement, however if IS is going to be a requirement of all meters going forward there is not a non-IS meter that can be converted to an IS meter and therefore falls into meter replacement.  Please clarify the IS requirement.


	Intrinsically safe equipment is only required in Class 1, Division 1 spaces as described by the National Electric Code Article 500.  Certain monitoring locations, such as combined or sanitary sewers, are Class 1, Division 1 rated.  Others, such as stormwater sewers or creeks, are not.  SPU is planning to replace the monitors which are located in Class 1, Division 1 locations, but not the monitors in locations which do not fit the Class 1, Division 1 classification.  
	

	23. 
	5/17/2010
	5/17/2010
	1) The 10 pages under Specification/Technical approach are to contain answers to the RFP questions spreadsheet.  What I am seeing from your answer is that this is not to be a separate submission so does this mean that we are restricted to 10 pages to answer the RFP spreadsheets questions or 

2) In the meeting you stated it was not SPU’s intention not to restrict the length of response to the RFP spreadsheet answers, so it sounded as if we had to submit both (which was also a lot of overlap).  Therein lies the confusion.  The RFP spreadsheet questions require that we submit testing documentation which is many pages long.

Question 1 )  If all the answers to all those questions have to fit in 10 pages is it SPU’s intention that we attach the testing documentation as an Appendix for review?

Question 2)  Please confirm the 10 page restriction to the RFP spreadsheet questions because the RFP spreadsheet questions and the Specification/Technical approach are considered the same thing.


	The RFP spreadsheet questions and the Specification/Technical approach are considered the same thing.   Response to RFP specification questions should be no more than 10 pages.  Additional information (including testing information) may be submitted as an appendix if desired.
	

	24. 
	5/17/2010
	5/17/2010
	Would you please confirm the need for wireless capability as an addition to Bid Offer Sheet Spec 1 items 59 and 60, as well as Spec 3 items 30 & 31?  


	Yes, CSO flow monitors in Spec 1 will need to communicate both wirelessly and using MODBUS.   
	

	25. 
	5/20/2010
	5/21/2010
	Could you please provide a description for the Campbell Scientific C5550 unit or check that this is the correct part number (Bid Offer Sheet – Spec #2, Line Item #50., page 5)?  Campbell Scientific has said they don’t have a unit/part call C5550; they do have a sensor called CS500.


	The correct Campbell Scientific sensor for the Spec #2, Line Item #50 bid offer sheet is the CS450-L pressure transducer.
	

	26. 
	5/20/2010
	5/21/2010
	Please remove Teledyne Isco 4150 from the specifications as it is a soon to be discontinued product.  The replacement would the 2150-Series of AV Flowmeters, more specifically in the case where IS requirements are the 2150ex would be the required meter which is the IS version of the 2150.  
	
	Replace Teledyne ISCO 4150 with the 2150 series of AV flowmeters, including the 2150ex.   

	27. 
	5/20/2010
	5/21/2010
	Specification 1, Items #44 and 45 – is it your intent to request only the time for repair of a monitor or should materials for repair also be considered as part of the unit price?


	Yes, list hourly labor costs only for these #44 and #45.  Repair materials can be listed on optional additional bid offer list.
	

	28. 
	5/20/2010
	5/21/2010
	Specification 1, Items #57 and 58 – may we provided a blended rate of different job positions or would you like these items broken down into the different job titles and rates?


	Please break down into different job titles and rates.
	

	29. 
	5/20/2010
	5/21/2010
	Specification 1, Items #68 and 69 – is the unit price only for the loggers or should a complete installation kit with sensors be included?

	Please include logger and sensors.  Installation kits items that are site specific (such as bands and cables) can be listed on an optional additional bid items list.
	

	30. 
	5/20/2010
	5/21/2010
	I’m confused by the page limit requirements for this RFP. Below is my understanding based on reading the responses to questions posted on the blog. Is this correct for Spec 2?

Cover Letter – 1 page

Minimum Requirements – 1 double-sided page

Vendor Questionnaire and Certification – outside of page count

Mandatory Proposal Response

                Team Qualifications and Experience (questions 1-3) – 6 pages

                Specification/Technical Approach (questions 4-18) – 10 pages

Offer Sheet – outside of page count

Equal Benefits Declaration – outside of page count

Also, may resumes be included as an appendix?


	Please see response to question #23.  Resumes may be included in an appendix.
	

	31. 
	5/21/2010
	5/21/2010
	Is item 15 of Bid Offer Sheet Specification 1 an unintentional duplication of item 14?  Do you need any additional price?
	Yes, please strike item 15 from the specification #1 offer sheet. It is an unintentional duplicate.
	

	32. 
	5/21/2010
	Pending
	Would you also expand on the intent of the item #14 in the offer sheet for specification #1?  Is it related to the web-based delivery of items 12 & 13 or is it data finalization as described in item 47? 
	
	

	33. 
	
	
	
	
	

	34. 
	
	
	
	
	

	35. 
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The Micromonitor is two devices installed in the upstream pipe of a manhole. Furthest
upstream is the ultrasonic probe connected to an ADS Flowshark. Downstream closer to
the manhole (6” separation) is a flow conditioning weir designed to raise the base flow to
a measurable depth. The ultrasonic probe must be installed level and have the proper
offset programmed such that the flow will read zero when the pipe is dry. The rating
curve will be supplied by the manufacturer of the weir (Stantec). At the time of
installation, the installer must measure the depth of flow upstream of the weir when the
flow just crests the weir. This can be accomplished by scooping the water over the weir
and measuring the depth upstream just as the level rises to the crest of the weir. This may
have to be accomplished at night when the flow is very low.
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